
 
 

ADDENDUM  
RECYCLING PROCESSING SERVICES FOR NON-CURBSIDE COLLECTION 

CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS 
 

 
Solicitation: IFB 1500 SLW1043   Addendum No: 5  Date of Addendum:  8/6/2020 
 
 
This addendum is to incorporate the following changes to the above referenced solicitation:  
 
I. Clarifications: 

1) The Scope of Work has been replaced in its entirety as Version 1 Scope of Work. 

II. Questions and Answers: 

Q1: When will City staff present their contract recommendation to the Zero Waste Advisory 
Commission and the Austin City Council? 
A1: The anticipated ZWAC date is September 9 or October 15. The anticipated Council date is 
October 15 or November 12.  
 
Q2: According to the Scope of Work, less than 1,000 tons of recyclables were received in FY19.  
What is the basis for not utilizing the City’s existing Master Recycling, Processing, and 
Marketing agreements to manage the small amount of recyclable materials contemplated in 
this solicitation? 
A2: This was a decision made by the ARR Department Director. 
 
Q3: Please provide a copy of each material composition study performed under the current 
contract for Recycling Processing Services for City In-House Recycling Collection, MA 1500 
NA140000142. 
A3: Please see attached documents including the composition studies for NA140000142.  
 
Q4: Section 4.2.4 of the Scope of Work states that the City will select the “process(es)” for 
material composition studies.  Please explain the process used for performing material 
composition studies under the current contract for Recycling Processing Services for City In-
House Recycling, MA 1500 NA140000142. 
A4: Due to the smaller volume generated by In-House Recycling, a hand sort of approximately 
50% sample size has been used for performing the material composition studies under the 
current contract. Separate composition studies will be conducted for RRDOC and In-House 
recycling. 
 
Q5: Section 4.2.5 of the Scope of Work states that ARR will review and comment on draft 
reports for material composition studies and shall make requested revisions until the report is 
accepted by the City in writing.  This requirement is apparently not included in the current 
contract for Recycling Processing Services for City In-House Recycling, MA 1500 NA140000142.  
Please explain the basis for including this new requirement. 
A5: ARR is requesting to review and verify that all drafted reports accurately reflect the results 
of the composition studies.  



 
Q6: Please specify where non-recyclable (residual) materials are disposed under the current 
contract Recycling Processing Services for City In-House Recycling, MA 1500 NA140000142. 
A6:  Texas Disposal Systems (TDS) landfill. 
 
Q7: How many loads have been rejected for excessive contamination under the current 
contract for Recycling Processing Services for City In-House Recycling, MA 1500 NA140000142? 
A7: Zero. 
 
Q8: Please specify which market indices are used to calculate commodity revenues under the 
current contract for Recycling Processing Services for City In-House Recycling, MA 1500 
NA140000142?  
A8: Pulp and Paper Weekly, Secondary Materials Pricing, and American Metals Market were the 
market indices used.  
 
Q9: Section 3.3.2, Market Prices Structure, states “unless otherwise agreed upon, the pricing 
shall be based upon the following market prices, and shall utilize the regional high price from 
the first monthly published values from secondarymaterialspricing.com, Houston 
(southcentral USA) Region for pricing unless another index is listed.”  Will the City accept the 
Pulp and Paper Index Southwest Region High-Side price for OCC, MXP, and News? 
A9: No. They shall be based upon the market pricing indicated within the SOW.  
 
Q10: The bid includes ONP #8, but this grade no longer exists.  Will the City change to SRP #56 
(sorted residential papers)? 
A10: The SOW has been updated to reflect SRPN #56 instead of ONP #8.  
 
Q11: The bid uses AMM Scrap, Ferrous, No. 2 Bundles, Consumers/Houston; however, this 
grade isn’t listed under Scrap, Ferrous, and there is not a Houston Region.  Will the City accept 
a different index on this grade? 
A11: The City will accept the Arkansas/Tennessee Border pricing for this grade. The referenced 
section of the SOW will be updated with this addendum.  
 
Q12: In Section 7.1.4.1, the City states no material collected under this contract may be taken 
for disposal to Austin Community Landfill, in accordance with the policy direction given on 
Item 37 at the February 20, 2020 meeting of the Austin City Council.  Will the City provide 
more clarity around the policy direction that was given during this meeting and how it directly 
relates to this contract? 
A12: ARR was given direction from City Council that no waste from this contract may be taken 
for disposal to Austin Community Landfill located at 9900 Giles Ln, Austin, Texas, 78754, in 
accordance with the policy direction given on Item #37 at the February 20, 2020 meeting of the 
Austin City Council. The meeting can be reviewed here. No materials may be taken to this 
landfill under this contract.  
 
Q13: Is there any circumstance under which the Austin Community Landfill would be 
approved as a landfill facility by the City on an interim, transitional, emergency, or permanent 
basis?  If so, what are those circumstances? 
A13: No.  
 
Q14: Balcones does not haul residual material directly to a landfill.  Is it acceptable that our 
service provider does haul baled residual material to the Austin Community Landfill? 
A14: No.  

http://www.austintexas.gov/department/city-council/2020/20200220-reg.htm


 
Q15: In light of the uncertainty surrounding the potential closure of a business during a global 
pandemic, would the Austin Community Landfill be approved as a landfill facility by the City 
on an interim, transitional, emergency, or permanent basis?  If so, could it be included as an 
approved landfill facility until the end of such a period? 
A15: No.  
 
Q16: Since the material in fungible once delivered on-site, can an equal amount of volume be 
sent to other landfills in the area? 
A16: Austin Community Landfill is not an acceptable option. All other regional landfills are 
acceptable.   
 
Q17: In Section 8.1.1.1B, the City requests daily total tonnage by Recyclable Commodity 
received for processing.  Will the City accept the total weight as “CSS-Commercial Single 
Stream”?    
A17:  Yes. 
 
Q18: In Section 8.1.1.1C, the City requests daily total tonnage by residuals processed.  This 
number will come as part of the composition study breakdown.  Will the City accept 
eliminating this daily and receive as part of the monthly reports only?  If not monthly, then 
weekly and monthly? 
A18: Monthly. 
 
Q19: In Section 8.2.2I, the total of the residue will come from the composition study.  To 
clarify, is this what the City is expecting? 
A19: Yes. 
 
Q20: In Section 8.2.3, it states checks must be mailed by the 15th.  Will the City accept by the 
20th? 
A20: Language in the SOW has been revised.  
 
Q21: Can the bid respondent provide an exceptions page for any part of the Scope of Work 
that might need to be renegotiated? 
A21: No exceptions may be taken. 
 

III.  ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN THE SAME. 

 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY:  
 
 
 
__________________________  __________________________  ________________ 
Name     Authorized Signature   Date 
 
RETURN ONE COPY OF THIS ADDENDUM TO THE PURCHASING OFFICE, CITY OF AUSTIN, WITH YOUR 
RESPONSE OR PRIOR TO THE SOLICITATION CLOSING DATE. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY CONSTITUTE 
GROUNDS FOR REJECTION. 
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0 0 0 250 0.125 37.57%

0 0 0 1 0.001 0.18%

0 0 0 10 0.005 1.50%

0 0 0 10 0.005 1.50%

50 6 0.003 0.90%

0 0.000 0.00%

20 0.010 3.01%

2 0.001 0.30%

0 0.000 0.00%

6 0.003 0.93%
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